
 
CITY OF ANAMOSA 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA – REGULAR SESSION 
 

MONDAY, APRIL 25, 2022 – 6:00 P.M. 
ANAMOSA LIBRARY & LEARNING CENTER 
600 EAST 1ST STREET, ANAMOSA, IA 52205 

 
Zoom Meeting Link 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82797939702 
Meeting ID: 827 9793 9702 

Passcode: Anamosa 

Join by Telephone 
+1 646 558 8656 US 

Meeting ID: 827 9793 9702 
Passcode: 8940145 

  
If you wish to address the City Council, please wait for the Mayor to open the floor for public comment on that agenda item and then 

approach the podium. Before speaking, please state your name and address. Each speaker is limited to five (5) minutes per agenda item 
and is expected to refrain from the use of profane, obscene, or slanderous language. 

The above Zoom link does not allow for participation in the meeting. It is for viewing only. 
 

 
Page 1 of 2 

1.0) ROLL CALL 

2.0) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

3.0) APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

4.0) MOTION TO APPROVE THE MINUTES FROM THE FOLLOWING MEETINGS: 

4.1) APRIL 11, 2022 – REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

5.0) PUBLIC HEARINGS: NONE 

6.0) PROCLAMATIONS: NONE 

7.0) OLD BUSINESS:  

7.1) REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH SHIVE-

HATTERY FOR THE FIRE STATION ADDITION PROJECT. (Ron Hinds) 

7.2) REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF POSITION PROFILE AND JOB ANNOUNCEMENT FOR CITY 

ADMINISTRATOR/CLERK (Elizabeth Hansen) 

7.3) PROJECT STATUS UPDATE FROM SNYDER & ASSOCIATES (Lindsay Beaman) 

7.4) PROJECT STATUS UPDATE  FROM HR GREEN (Josh Scanlon, Jeremy Kaemmer) 

1. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF JORDAN WELL #6, BID PACKAGE 2-CHANGE ORDER 

NO. 3 

2. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF S. BOOTH STREET WATER MAIN & STORM SEWER 

REPLACEMENT-AMENDEMNT NO. 1 

3. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT FOR 

ANAMOSA 2022 SIDEWALK PROGRAM. 

7.5) PROJECT STATUS UPDATE ON DOWNTOWN REVITALIZATION FAÇADE IMPROVEMENT 

PROJECT (Derek Lumsden) 

1. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF CHANGE ORDER NO. 23 

8.0) NEW BUSINESS 

8.1) DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON JONES COUNTY PUBLIC HEALTH BOARD 

APPOINTMENT (Jess Wiedenhoff) 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82797939702


CITY OF ANAMOSA - CITY COUNCIL AGENDA – REGULAR SESSION 
 

 
Page 2 of 2 

8.2) DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON SENIOR DINING CENTER FIRE SYSTEM UPDATE 

(Lisa Tallman-Senior Dining Center) 

8.3) REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF APPLICATION OF NICHOLAS MOORE TO JOIN THE 

ANAMMOSA VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT. 

8.4) REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH SALLY 

HINRICHSEN FOR CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING ASSISTANCE. 

8.5) REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF AMENDED JOB DESCRIPTIONS-CITY OF 

ANAMOSA/ADMINISTRATION DEPARTMENT 

8.6) RESOLUTION APPROVING THE HIRING AND SETTING SALARIES OF SEASONAL PART 

TIME EMPLOYEES FOR THE PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT FOR THE 2022 

SUMMER SEASON.  ROLL VOTE 

8.7) REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF CURRENT BILLS 

9.0) CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT:  

10.0) MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS: 

10.1) MAYOR’S REPORT 

10.2) COUNCIL REPORTS 

11.0) PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 

12.0) ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

 



STATEMENT OF COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS 
April 11, 2022 

 
The City Council of the City of Anamosa met in Regular Session April 11, 2022 at the Anamosa 
Library and Learning Center and via Zoom at 6:00 p.m. with Mayor Rod Smith presiding. The 
following Council Members were present: Rich Crump, Jeff Stout, Alan Zumbach, Teresa Tuetken 
and Brooke Gombert. Absent: Kay Smith. Also present were Jeremiah Hoyt, Interim City 
Administrator/City Clerk, Dana Laidig, Deputy City Clerk, Shane Brown, Street Superintendent, 
Steve Agnitsch, Utilities Superintendent, Rob Young, Assistant Utilities Superintendent, Shelley 
Carr, Parks & Recreation Director, Rachel Frank, Wastewater Trainee, and Nick Brokaw, Interim 
Lieutenant. Iowa Code Chapter 21, as interpreted, permits public meetings to be held 
electronically.  
 
Mayor Rod Smith called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.  Roll call was taken with a quorum 
present.  
 
Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
Motion by Crump, second by Zumbach to approve the agenda. Ayes: all. Nays: none. Motion 
carried.   
 
Motion by Stout, second by Crump to approve the minutes of the March 28, 2022 Regular City 
Council meeting. Ayes: all. Nays: none. Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Crump, second by Gombert to approve the minutes of the March 30, 2022 Special 
Council Meeting. Ayes: all. Nays: none. Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Stout, second by Crump to table the professional services agreement with Shive-Hattery 
for the Fire Station Addition Project in the amount of $123,900.00 with a termination date of July 
30, 2022 for the next meeting. Ayes: all. Nays: none. Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Crump, second by Zumbach that Resolution 2022-24 for the Community Development 
Block Grant Sub-recipient Procurement policies and procedures be approved. Ayes: Crump, 
Gombert, Stout, Tuetken, Zumbach. Nays: None. Absent: Smith. Resolution adopted. 
 
Update on the Dillon Military Bridge presented by Tom Durgin and Nate Miller, Origin Design. 
 
Motion by Crump, second by Gombert to table the request to establish an amendment to the 28E 
Agreement between the City of Anamosa and Jones County for establishing ownership, control, 
and maintenance of the Dillon Military Bridge for after a meeting with the Jones County Board of 
Supervisors.  Ayes: all. Nays: none. Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Crump, second by Zumbach to reach out to the Jones County Board of Supervisors to 
schedule a joint meeting to discuss an amendment to the 28E Agreement between the City of 
Anamosa and Jones County for establishing ownership, control, and maintenance of the Dillon 
Military Bridge Ayes: all. Nays: none. Motion carried. 



Presentation from the Jones County Public Health regarding board appointment was tabled due to 
a scheduling conflict with Jess Wiedenhoff. 
 
Motion by Zumbach, seconded by Crump that Resolution 2022-25 for the designation of SLFRF 
funds for the City of Anamosa be approved. Ayes: Crump, Gombert, Stout, Tuetken, Zumbach. 
Nays: None. Absent: Smith. Resolution adopted. 
 
Motion by Crump, seconded by Gombert that Resolution 2022-26 for a quote from Cahoy Pump 
Service for restoration of Well #4 in the amount of $129,970.00 be approved as recommended by 
Steve Agnitsch, Utilities Superintendent. Ayes: Crump, Gombert, Stout, Tuetken, Zumbach. Nays: 
None. Absent: Smith. Resolution adopted. 
 
Motion by Crump, seconded by Stout to approve the Booth Street Project plans and specifications 
be approved. Ayes: All. Nays: None. Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Crump, seconded by Zumbach that Resolution 2022-27 for the appointment of Sandy 
Bunce to the Library Board of Trustees to fill the term ending June 30, 2025 be approved. Ayes: 
Crump, Gombert, Stout, Tuetken, Zumbach. Nays: None. Absent: Smith. Resolution adopted. 
 
Motion by Crump, seconded by Zumbach to approve the current bills. Ayes: All. Nays: None. 
Motion carried. 
 

Vendor Name Payable Description Total 
Payments 

941 TAX EFT PAYMENT SOCIAL SECURITY TAX 13389.13 
ACCESS SYSTEMS LEASING MTHLY COPIER 249 
AGVANTAGE FS, INC GENERATOR FUEL 1037.84 
ALLIANT ENERGY ELECTRIC 29602.52 
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES FALL PROTECTION 738.79 
AT&T MOBILITY MONTHLY CELL PHONE 647.59 
AVENU APRIL APPLICATION SOFTWARE/HARDWARE 3652.59 
BOOMERANG WELL #6 104321.9 
CENTURYLINK MTHLY PHONE 901.53 
CHEM RIGHT LABORATORIES INC MTHLY BAC TESTING 85 
CITY OF ANAMOSA FLEX - MEDICAL 150.38 
DELTA DENTAL PLAN OF IOWA DELTA DENTAL INSURANCE 1056.48 
DORSEY & WHITNEY LLP WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS 10000 
DRJ GROUP LLC ANNUAL FIRE EXTINGUISHER MAINT 2012.9 
EMPLOYEE GROUP SERVICES LTD GROUP INSURANCE ADMIN FEE 166.25 
FRAZIER/SPENCER MTHLY PHONE REIMBURSEMENT 20 
GALL'S INC. MEDAL OF VALOR 78.25 
GRAYBILL COMMUNICATIONS RADIO BATTERIES 514.1 
HOWARD R GREEN S BOOTH ST WATER MAIN PROJ 37126.75 
HURCO TECHNOLOGIES INC SMOKE BLOWER TANK 155.54 
IOWA ASSOC. OF MUNICIPAL UTIL. APRIL-JUNE SAFETY TRAINING 4540.04 
IOWA DEPT OF NATURAL RESOURCES BOOTH ST WATER PERMIT 179.92 
IOWA LAW ENFORCEMENT ACADEMY MMPI TRANSFER 50 
IOWA MUNICIPAL FINANCE OFFICER RE-ISSUE 250 
IPERS COLLECTIONS IPERS 9551.48 
JJ MERRILL CUSTOM FABRICATION SKID LOADER REPAIR 1398.41 
JONES COUNTY ECONOMIC DEVELOP- 4TH QTR FY22 CONTRIBUTION 3750 
JONES COUNTY SOLID WASTE MGMT MONROE BALLFIELD BATHROOM 664.4 
JONES COUNTY TREASURER PROPERTY TAX 2020 - 306 N DAVIS ST 719 



KIESLER'S POLICE SUPPLY AMMO 1375.86 
KRAY/JEFF MTHLY PHONE REIMBURSEMENT 20 
KUNKEL/DEREK MEAL REIMBURSEMENT 157.1 
LAWSON PRODUCTS, INC. WELD-ON HOOKS 405.84 
LODE/ERIC MTHLY PHONE REIMBURSEMENT 20 
MARTIN GARDNER ARCHITECTURE DOWNTOWN FACADE PHASE 2 9000 
MCALEER WATER COOLER RENT 53 
MEDIACOM INTERNET SERVICED 79.49 
NAYLOR SEED CO GRASS SEED 375 
ORIGIN DESIGN CO. STALLION CREEK WATERWAY IMPROVEMENT 3079 
PAYMENT SERVICE NETWORK SERVICES APRIL 68.2 
RECREATIONAL MOTOR SPORTS SHIPPING CHRGS - TESTING 226.27 
REDS TOWING/PETRO STOP, INC VEHICLE MAINT 1174.38 
REXCO EQUIPMENT SKID LOADER RENTAL 2250 
SCHMITZ JANITORIAL SUPPLY GLOVES 500 
SELECT SERVICE PUMP SERVICE - PIT 2600 
SHADA/TIM MTHLY PHONE REIMBURSEMENT 20 
SIOUX SALES COMPANY FIREARM SUPPLIES 5879.4 
SNYDER & ASSOCIATES INC. 2ND ST LIFT PHASE 2 13500 
ST LUKES WORK COMP 41 
SUPERIOR APPLIANCE REFRIGERATOR 619 
T&W GRINDING & COMPOST SERVICE BRUSH PILE GRINDING 2700 
THE HARTFORD LIFE INSURANCE 693.84 
TREASURER STATE OF IOWA STATE TAX 2141.83 
U.S. CELLULAR MTHLY CELL PHONE 262.38 
US POSTMASTER POSTAGE - REMINDER NOTICES 129.1 
USA BLUE BOOK LOCATING SUPPLIES 354.81 
VSP Insurance Co VSP INSURANCE 318.97 
WALMART COMMUNITY CARD OFFICE SUPPLIES 518.3 
WELLMARK BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIEL ALLIANCE HEALTH INSURANCE 21943.74 
Total  

 
297516.3 

 
Jeremiah Hoyt, Interim City Clerk/City Administrator presented the City Administrator’s report. 
No report. 

Mayor and Council Reports: The Mayor wanted to thank the Council for the very productive 
meeting and appreciated the engagement and open discussion. Crump informed everyone that the 
Tourism Board will be moving to the Grant Wood Building.  He also does not wish to be paid for 
the March 30, 2022 Special Council Meeting. 
 
Public Comments: Dan Frank and Nancy Schaefer gave public comments. 
 
There being no further business to come before the Council the meeting adjourned at 7:11pm.   
    
 
             
        Rod Smith, Mayor  
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________ 
Dana Laidig, Deputy Clerk 
 







































































CITY AMINISTRATOR/CITY CLERK 
ANAMOSA, IOWA 

 
Anamosa, Iowa, population 5,450 is seeking a champion of customer service; a proven 

leader who is a problem solver, skilled communicator, and team builder to serve as the 

next City Administrator/City Clerk.  Anamosa is centrally located; just 30 miles east of 

Cedar Rapids, 35 miles north of Iowa City and 45 miles West of Dubuque, Iowa.  The 

City Administrator/City Clerk has eight direct reports.  There are a total of 31 full time 

employees.  The annual operating budget is approximately $10 Million.  To learn more 

about Anamosa, the position profile and job description, visit their website at 

https://www.anamosa-iowa.org/. 

 
The successful candidate will have knowledge with economic development and tax 
increment financing, long and short-term financial planning experience, and be an active 
and approachable ambassador for the community. 
 
Education 

• A Bachelor’s Degree majoring in public administration, business management, 
law, political science, accounting, finance, economics, or related field.  An 
equivalent combination of seven to ten (7-10) years related education/experience 
may be considered. 

Experience 

• Three (3) years of progressively responsible municipal administrative experience 
or similar experience sufficient to successfully perform the essential duties of the 
job such as those listed in the job description. 

Salary and benefits 

• $100,000 to $120,000 annually, depending upon qualifications 

• Holidays, Vacation, and Personal Sick Leave  

• Health, Vision, Dental, Short-term Disability and Life Insurance are available  

• IPERS retirement benefits are available  
Car Allowance 

• A vehicle is provided or mileage reimbursement  

• Must obtain valid Iowa Driver’s License 
Cell Phone 

• Cell phone is available  
Residency 

• Residency within the city limits is required within six months of employment, 
unless an extension is necessary and agreed upon by both parties 

 
Additional Information 

Confidential materials such as a cover letter, resume, salary history, and five 
professional references should be sent to: 

 
Elizabeth Hansen, Midwest Municipal Consulting LLC 

ehansen.mmc@gmail.com 
515-391-9816 

Applications are due no later than noon CST on May 20, 2022. 

https://www.anamosa-iowa.org/
mailto:ehansen.mmc@


 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR/ 

CITY CLERK 
The City of Anamosa, Iowa is a town of 5,450 located in Jones 
County. The city is 30 miles from Cedar Rapids, 35 miles from 
Iowa City and 45 miles from Dubuque. Anamosa neighboring 
cities include Monticello, Mt. Vernon, and Springville.  
 

Anamosa was founded in 1838 when it was a settlement of 
Buffalo Forks. It was incorporated in 1856 as Lexington, and in 
1877, it was reincorporated as a city and renamed Anamosa. 
The city got the name ‘Anamosa’ from when the town was 
visited by a Native American family who had a daughter named 
Anamosa who was very engaged with the townspeople.   
 

Anamosa is a very welcoming community with lots of 
restaurants, parks, activities and events to attend! There are 
over 8 parks in the city with Wapsipinicon Park being one of 
the oldest state parks! 
 

Anamosa is the perfect place to raise a family.  There are 4 K-
12 schools in Anamosa; Strawberry Hill Elementary, Anamosa 
Middle School, Anamosa High School, and Anamosa Riders’ 
Kids Club. The mission of Anamosa Community School 
District is to provide all students educational opportunities to 
learn and achieve in a rapidly changing global society. The 
closest universities to Anamosa are Kirkwood Community 
College in Monticello, Cornell College in Mt. Vernon, and the 
University of Iowa & Kirkwood Community College located in 
Iowa City. 
 

More information on the community is available at: 
City:  www.anamosa-iowa.org              

Anamosa Community School District: www.anamosa.k12.ia.us 
Jones County Development:  

www.jonescountydevelopment.com 
 
 
 
 

 

 

The City of 

Anamosa, Iowa 

seeks a  

champion of 

customer 

service; a proven 

leader who is a 

problem solver, 

skilled 

communicator, 

and team builder 

to serve as the 

next… 

http://www.anamosa-iowa.org/
http://www.anamosa.k12.ia.us/
http://www.jonescountydevelopment.com/


 

 

2 
 

Local Attractions: Local Attractions: Anamosa 
is home to many attractions including the 
National Motorcycle Museum which brings 
visitors from near and far. The Grant Wood Art 
Gallery showcases Iowa’s most famous artist’s, 
Grant Wood, work. The gallery is dedicated to 
preserving and promoting the history of Wood 
in his birthplace of Anamosa. Anamosa also is 
home to Starlighters Theater which showcases 
many theatrical performances, events, and much 
more! 

Health Care & Churches:  Jones Regional 
Medical Center Emergency Medicine, 
located in Anamosa, provides multiple 
health services for Jones County. Anamosa 
is home to 10 churches. 

Community Center: Anamosa is home to the 
Lawrence Community Center that provides 
numerous services for the city. The center has 3 
basketball courts with one able to convert to two 
volleyball courts as well as 3 racquetball courts. 
There are both cardio rooms and weight rooms 
available for use as well as locker rooms to 
change in. A television lounge and piano lounge 
are located at the front of the building with 
vending machines at your convenience. Lastly, 
there are also meeting and banquet facilities 
available to rent for meetings, birthday parties, 
fitness classes, and other occasions.  
 

Library:  The Anamosa Library and Learning 
Center has a mission to provide excellence in 
services and resources to bring people and 
information together. The library offers multiple 
services such as study rooms for students, public 
computers for both adults and children, copier 
services, and plenty of other activities for all ages 
to enjoy. 

The Community 



 

 

3 
 

Parks and Rec: Wapsipinicon 
Park is not only a historic park 
for the city of Anamosa, but 
also one of the oldest parks in 
the state of Iowa. The park is 
located on the southwest end of 
the city and offers activities 
such as golf, hiking, camping, 
and fishing in the 
Wapsipinicon River (above). 
The river got its name from a 
folk tale. The legend said that a 
Native American maiden and 
her lover jumped off a bluff into the river. The names of the couple were Wapsi and 
Pinicon. Wapsipinicon Park is not the only park in Anamosa. Stallion Creek Park is 
home to many gardens, regularly kept by the Garden Club. Remley Woods offers open 
fields, a trail to hike, as well as picnic tables for camping. Fountain Park and Anamosa 
Arboretum provide very beautiful natural art with multiple gardens and flower beds 
for visitors to observe. Anamosa has multiple parks for sporting events for local 
townspeople and visitors to 
come watch teams play baseball 
and softball. 
 
City Pool: The Anamosa Aqua 

Court offers numerous amenities 

for its guests including but not 

limited to an amazing 100 foot 

water slide, spray pool with a 

fountain, Snack Shack 

concessions, and much more!  

 

Police: The Anamosa Police 

Department has 3 core values: dedication, community, and integrity. They are dedicated to 

their oath of office, impartially enforcing laws and upholding the constitution. With empathy 

and understanding, they will selflessly serve their city and with moral principles, they will 

demonstrate honesty and respect. Anamosa Police Department consists of a chief of police, an 

administrative assistant, a sergeant, 6 full time officers and 3 part-time officers. 

 

Fire: Anamosa Fire Department demonstrates dedication, commitment and training, courage, 

and strength to protect their city. They protect nearly 6,000 residents in Anamosa as well as 

the citizens of Stone City and Amber. The fire department covers over one hundred square 

miles of farms and residential areas on top of two parks, Wapsipinicon State Park and Linn 

County Matsel Park. 

The Community, continued… 



 

 

4 
 

Anamosa operates under a Mayor-Council form of government with a Council and appointed 
City Mayor. The community elects a mayor every two years and six city council members serve 
four years with overlapping terms, so that three seats are open every two years. The council 
meets on the second and fourth Monday of every month at 6pm. 

 

Anamosa is a full government service community with 8 departments including 
Administration, Fire, Police, Library, Streets, Water, Wastewater, and Parks & Recreation. 
There are 31 and 13 full-time and part-time employees, respectively with 45-50 seasonal 
employees.  

 

The city of Anamosa currently has a levy rate of 14.68. They currently have a revenue of 8 
million with 10 million in expenditures. The city’s finances are solid and stable. 

Current Priorities and Projects:  The City would like to hold a goal setting work session 
soon after appointment of the next City Administrator/City Clerk.  The next City 
Administrator/City Clerk will participate in the process and will be expected to develop 
long-term strategies that will help the city address the current projects and priorities: 
 

 Fire Station Addition Completion 

 Old Dubuque Road Extension 
Project 

 Phase 2 Downtown Revitalization 

  Downtown Beautification 

  Bike Trail Expansions 

  Welcome Signage 

  Police Department Relocation 

 Code Enforcement 

 Infrastructure Improvements 

  Update Comprehensive and 
Annexation Plans 

  New Swimming Pool 

 Capital Improvement Planning 

 Code Codification 

 Childcare Center 
 

 Housing Programs 

Governance and the Organization 

Leadership and Innovation Opportunities 

 



 

 

5 
 

The city administrator/city clerk oversees 
the day-to-day business of the city and is 
the public relations contact person.  This 
means being present and accessible, 
approachable, friendly, having an open-
door policy and offering information on a 
regular basis to maintain an acceptable 
level of transparency.  Strong presentation 
and communication skills; both orally and 
written, will be important.   
 

The city of Anamosa seeks a visionary 
leader. The ideal candidate will have an 
ability to see the big picture, be a strategic 
thinker and leader with the ability to make 
sound decisions that are in the best 
interest of the city.    
 

The city administrator/city clerk should have a management style that values employee 
involvement and promotes fairness. The city administrator/city clerk’s team-building 
characteristics should include the understanding and flexibility in allowing employees and 
supervisors the latitude to make decisions on how to meet objectives, resulting in a higher level 
of job satisfaction and performance. The city administrator/city clerk’s ability to promote inter-
department and community communication and collaboration is vitally important to maintain 
the city’s cooperative relationships among departments and with local groups and 
organizations.  
 

The city of Anamosa enjoys financial stability, maintaining the same levy rate for several years. 
It is important that the candidate has budgeting and fiscal management experience to maintain 
the city’s sound financial standing. Forecasting long-term needs, planning and awareness of 
bonding practices and Tax Increment Financing (TIF) is critical.   
 

Anamosa is working on economic growth and redevelopment.  The city administrator/city 
clerk will lead the city on economic development efforts and can use these resources to 
stimulate development and redevelopment, especially workforce and rental housing.   
 

Specific traits identified:  
▪ Leadership for the staff, Boards and City 

Council to provide technical consultation 

and a recommendation on policies, 

services and programs 

▪ Understand fiscal administration of 

budgets and forecasting needs 

▪ Strategic, Comprehensive, Capital 

Improvement and Equipment Revolving 

Planning 

▪ Long-term financial planning, budgeting 

and knowledge of Tax Increment 

Financing (TIF) 

▪ Infrastructure repair/replacement and 

Capital Improvement Planning 

▪ Comfortable being a public figure; 

approachable and personable 

Desired Capabilities 



 

 

6 
 

▪ Performance evaluation, staff 

development, and team building 

▪ Accept/evaluate new ideas; open  

 Champions a customer service 

environment at all levels within the 

organization, demonstrates active 

listening  

▪ Project Manager 

▪ Experience in leading dynamic projects 

▪ Fosters relationships with community 

partners, regional entities and other 

communities 

▪ Experience managing human resource 

matters 

▪ Is an ambassador for the City; an 

advocate for the objectives of the city

A Bachelor of Science Degree majoring in public administration, political science, accounting, 
finance, business management or administration, economics or a related field is required for 
the City Administrator/city clerk position and 3 years in municipal government and supervisory 
experience. An equivalent combination of related experience/education may be considered. 

The salary range is $100,000 to $120,000 annually, depending on experience.  Benefits include a 
choice between IPERS or ICMA retirement benefits, life and short-term disability, medical, 
vision and dental insurance.  Holiday and Paid Time Off, including vacation and medical leave 
benefits. A vehicle allowance or mileage reimbursement is available.  A cellular phone is 
provided or a stipend is available. Residency within the City Limits is required within six 
months of employment. 

Submit your cover letter, resume, salary history and five work related references by noon CST 
on May 20, 2022 to Midwest Municipal Consulting, LLC. at Ehansen.mmc@gmail.com.  See full 
job description at https://www.anamosa-iowa.org/.  For more information, please contact 
Elizabeth Hansen by calling 515-391-9816. 

Applications will be accepted until noon CST                  May 20, 2022 

Screening/written and/or phone interviews                    June 1, 2022 

Selection of finalists and background checks begin               June 13, 2022 

Interviews                                          June 25, 2022 

City Council may consider new city manager appointment         July 5, 2022 

 

 

Compensation and Benefits 

How to Apply 

Tentative Timeline 

Education, Experience and Training 

 

mailto:Ehansen.mmc@gmail.com
https://www.anamosa-iowa.org/




















   
 

Version 2.3  03282022 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 
For 

 
Anamosa – 2022 Sidewalk Program 

 
 

 
Beth Brincks, City Administrator 

City of Anamosa 
107 S Ford St 

Anamosa, Iowa, 52205 
(319) 462-6055 

 
 
 
 

Jeremy Kaemmer, PE, AICP – Project Engineer 
HR Green, Inc.  

8710 Earhart Lane SW 
Cedar Rapids, IA  52404 

Project #: 220501 
 
 
 
 

March 28,2022 
 
 
 



 
 

Version2.3  02052021  

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
 
1.0 PROJECT UNDERSTANDING 
 
2.0 SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
3.0 DELIVERABLES AND SCHEDULES INCLUDED IN THIS AGREEMENT  
 
4.0 ITEMS NOT INCLUDED IN AGREEMENT/SUPPLEMENTAL SERVICES  
 
5.0 SERVICES BY OTHERS  
 
6.0 CLIENT RESPONSIBILITIES  
 
7.0 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FEE 
 
8.0 TERMS AND CONDITIONS  
 



Professional Services Agreement 
Sidewalk Program 

220501 
03/28/2022 

Page 1 of 10 
 

Version2.3   03282022 

 
THIS AGREEMENT is between The City of Anamosa (hereafter “CLIENT”) and HR GREEN, INC. 
(hereafter "COMPANY"). 
 

1.0 Project Understanding 

1.1 GENERAL UNDERSTANDING 

The CLIENT wishes to establish - comprehensive sidewalk repair and accessibility compliance 
programs. 
 
COMPANY understands the CLIENT intends to perform annual compliance inspections and is 
requesting assistance with drafting appropriate city policies and ordinances, creating an 
implementation plan, and issuing program notices for the first year. 
 
GOALS 

1. Develop a City-wide sidewalk policy for implementing new and maintaining existing 
sidewalks throughout the community  

2. Create an implementation plan and schedule based on anticipated construction costs 
and available funding alternatives 

3. Issue program notices for the first year 
 
1.2 DESIGN CRITERIA/ASSUMPTIONS 

Sidewalk compliance and design criteria shall use design guidance from the Statewide Urban 
Design and Specifications (SUDAS), regulatory requirements from the American Disabilities Act 
(ADA), and guidance from Public Right-of-Way Accessibility Guidelines (PROWAG). 
 

2.0 Scope of Services 

The CLIENT agrees to employ COMPANY to perform the following services: 
 

2.1 PROJECT ADMINISTRATION & COORDINATION 

A. Project Monitoring & Progress Reports 
Project Administration and Coordination will involve the management oversight of the 
project which will include the on-going review of the project execution, documentation, 
schedule and budget, contract file management, and general correspondence 
between COMPANY and the CLIENT.  

 
B. Kickoff Meeting: 

COMPANY and the CLIENT will meet to ascertain that the scope of services is clearly 
defined to maintain the project schedule. It is assumed the Kickoff will be attended by 
two (2) staff members of the COMPANY. 

 
C. Council Meetings/Work Sessions: 

COMPANY will meet two (2) times with the City Council, it is assumed two (2) staff of 
the COMPANY will attend, in either a work session or other meeting to discuss the 
proposed policies, ordinances, and implementation plan. 

 



Professional Services Agreement 
Sidewalk Program 

220501 
03/28/2022 

Page 2 of 10 
 

Version2.3   03282022 

2.2 SIDEWALK POLICY & ORDINANCES 

The COMPANY will assist the CLIENT in establishing the policy framework for the proposed 
sidewalk program. 
  

A. Draft Policies & Ordinances: 
COMPANY will create a draft set of sidewalk compliance policies and ordinances for 
the City to review and adopt. Policies and ordinances will address sidewalk criteria, 
notification procedures, and property assessments. 
 

2.3 IMPLEMENTATION PLAN  

The COMPANY will outline a strategy for the City to schedule its inspections, plan for ADA ramp 
improvements, and to address sidewalk gaps. 
 

A. Proposed Implementation Plan: 
COMPANY will develop a plan for implementing the proposed sidewalk policies & 
ordinances. This will involve dividing the city into four (4) or more zones, each to be 
inspected by the CLIENT, one (1) zone per year. After the first inspection is complete, 
COMPANY will assist the CLIENT in preparing the program notices for deficient 
sidewalks, an estimated replacement schedule and an estimated overall program cost 
based on number of ramps in the first region and an assumed sidewalk failure rate. 

 
2.4 PROGRAM NOTICES 

The CLIENT will need to inform affected property owners of their sidewalk deficiencies and their 
responsibilities related to its repair, before moving forward with their own repair project to 
address the deficiencies. 
 

A. Develop Draft Notices: 
COMPANY will help create draft forms for the CLIENT to issue to affected property 
owners regarding their sidewalk deficiencies. The property owners will be given a 
period of time to address those deficiencies themselves or hire a contractor to do it.  

 
B. Compliance Tracking: 

COMPANY will track the status of notified property owners using a GIS database and 
spreadsheet. Property owners who fail to remedy their deficient sidewalks, or inform 
the CLIENT they do not intend to, will be recorded and then reported to the CLIENT at 
the end of the response period so they may be added to a sidewalk repair contract.  

 
2.5 REVISED IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 

After the given response period for the affected property owners, the COMPANY will re-evaluate 
the Implementation Plan and revise it based on the rate of compliance, estimated program 
costs, and available funding. The revised plan will address the sidewalk repair and accessibility 
compliance programs using the information -during the one year of inspection and compliance 
tracking. This may mean reducing or increasing the scope of the programs for the following 
years or restructuring the proposed inspection zones. The revised Implementation Plan will 
include the proposed accessibility ramp locations and sidewalk compliance projects that should 
be addressed in the following year, as well as an annualized budget. 
 



Professional Services Agreement 
Sidewalk Program 

220501 
03/28/2022 

Page 3 of 10 
 

Version2.3   03282022 

3.0 Deliverables and Schedules Included in this Agreement 

 
1) Proposed Sidewalk Ordinances 
2) Implementation Plan 
3) Program Notices & Tracking 
4) Revised Implementation Plan 

 
Kick off       One (1) weeks from NTP 
First Council Meeting/Work Session    Two (2) weeks from NTP 
Draft Ordinances, Policies, & Improvement Plan Three (3) weeks from NTP 
Second Council Work Session & Council Approval Four (4) weeks from NTP 
Inspection (CLIENT)     Ten (1) weeks from NTP 
Data Evaluation      Eleven (11) weeks from NTP 
Program Notices Issued    Eleven (11) weeks from NTP 
Program Compliance Report    Twenty-four (24) weeks from NTP 
Revised Implementation Plan    Twenty-eight (28) weeks from NTP 

 
This schedule was prepared to include reasonable allowances for review and approval 
times required by the CLIENT and public authorities having jurisdiction over the project.  
This schedule shall be equitably adjusted as the project progresses, allowing for changes 
in the scope of the project requested by the CLIENT or for delays or other causes beyond 
the control of COMPANY. 

 

4.0 Items not included in Agreement/Supplemental Services 

The following items are not included as part of this AGREEMENT:   
 

• Engineering Design Services 

• Plan Preparation 

• Bid Documents 

• Topographic Survey 

• Compliance Inspection 

• Construction Administration 

• Construction Observation 

• Construction Survey 

• Eminent Domain/Condemnation Services. 

• Private Utility Relocation Design and Plan Preparation. 

• Public Engagement 
 
Supplemental services not included in the AGREEMENT can be provided by COMPANY 
under separate agreement, if desired. 
 

5.0 Services by Others 

None 
 



Professional Services Agreement 
Sidewalk Program 

220501 
03/28/2022 

Page 4 of 10 
 

Version2.3   03282022 

6.0 Client Responsibilities 

The Client/Client shall furnish or obtain from others the following services: 
 

• Perform annual compliance inspections & identify ramps to be replaced 

• Coordinate appropriate resolutions, public hearings, and notices of intent. 

• Send notifications to affected property owners. 

• Participate in program planning and provide written comments. 

• Provide legal, accounting and insurance counseling services as necessary for the 
project. 

• Coordinate/obtain appropriate location/facility for Public Meetings and provide public 
notices. 

 

7.0 Professional Services Fee 

7.1 Fees 

The fee for services will be based on COMPANY standard hourly rates current at the time 
the AGREEMENT is signed. These standard hourly rates are subject to change upon 30 
days’ written notice.  Non-salary expenses directly attributable to the project such as: (1) 
living and traveling expenses of employees when away from the home office on business 
connected with the project; (2) identifiable communication expenses; (3) identifiable 
reproduction costs applicable to the work; and (4) outside services will be charged in 
accordance with the rates current at the time the service is done. 

7.2 Invoices 

Invoices for COMPANY’s services shall be submitted, on a monthly basis.  Invoices shall 
be due and payable upon receipt.  If any invoice is not paid within 30 days, COMPANY may, 
without waiving any claim or right against the CLIENT, and without liability whatsoever to 
the CLIENT, suspend or terminate the performance of services.  The retainer shall be 
credited on the final invoice.  Accounts unpaid 30 days after the invoice date may be subject 
to a monthly service charge of 1.5% (or the maximum legal rate) on the unpaid balance.  In 
the event that any portion of an account remains unpaid 60 days after the billing, COMPANY 
may institute collection action and the CLIENT shall pay all costs of collection, including 
reasonable attorneys’ fees. 

7.3 Extra Services   

Any service required but not included as part of this AGREEMENT shall be considered extra 
services.  Extra services will be billed on a Time and Material basis with prior approval of 
the CLIENT. 

7.4 Exclusion   

This fee does not include attendance at any meetings or public hearings other than those 
specifically listed in the Scope of Services. These service items are considered extra and 
are billed separately on an hourly basis. 

7.5 Payment   

The CLIENT AGREES to pay COMPANY on the following basis:  

Time and material basis with a Not to Exceed fee of $31,800 



Professional Services Agreement 
Sidewalk Program 

220501 
03/28/2022 

Page 5 of 10 
 

Version2.3   03282022 

 

8.0 Terms and Conditions 

The following Terms and Conditions are incorporated into this AGREEMENT and made a part of it. 

8.1 Standard of Care 

Services provided by COMPANY under this AGREEMENT will be performed in a manner consistent with that 
degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession currently practicing at the same 
time and in the same or similar locality. 

8.2 Entire Agreement 

This AGREEMENT and its attachments constitute the entire understanding between CLIENT and COMPANY 
relating to COMPANY’s services.  Any prior or contemporaneous agreements, promises, negotiations, or 
representations not expressly set forth herein are of no effect.  Subsequent modifications or amendments to this 
AGREEMENT shall be in writing and signed by the parties to this AGREEMENT.  If the CLIENT, its officers, 
agents, or employees request COMPANY to perform extra services pursuant to this AGREEMENT, CLIENT will 
pay for the additional services even though an additional written agreement is not issued or signed. 

8.3 Time Limit and Commencement of Services   

This AGREEMENT must be executed within ninety (90) days to be accepted under the terms set forth herein.  
The services will be commenced immediately upon receipt of this signed AGREEMENT. 

8.4 Suspension of Services 

If the Project or the COMPANY’S services are suspended by the CLIENT for more than thirty (30) calendar 
days, consecutive or in the aggregate, over the term of this AGREEMENT, the COMPANY shall be 
compensated for all services performed and reimbursable expenses incurred prior to the receipt of notice of 
suspension. In addition, upon resumption of services, the CLIENT shall compensate the COMPANY for 
expenses incurred as a result of the suspension and resumption of its services, and the COMPANY’S schedule 
and fees for the remainder of the Project shall be equitably adjusted. 

If the COMPANY’S services are suspended for more than ninety (90) days, consecutive or in the aggregate, the 
COMPANY may terminate this AGREEMENT upon giving not less than five (5) calendar days' written notice to 
the CLIENT. 

If the CLIENT is in breach of this AGREEMENT, the COMPANY may suspend performance of services upon 
five (5) calendar days' notice to the CLIENT. The COMPANY shall have no liability to the CLIENT, and the 
CLIENT agrees to make no claim for any delay or damage as a result of such suspension caused by any breach 
of this AGREEMENT by the CLIENT. Upon receipt of payment in full of all outstanding sums due from the 
CLIENT, or curing of such other breach which caused the COMPANY to suspend services, the COMPANY shall 
resume services and there shall be an equitable adjustment to the remaining project schedule and fees as a 
result of the suspension. 

8.5 Books and Accounts 

COMPANY will maintain books and accounts of payroll costs, travel, subsistence, field, and incidental expenses 
for a period of five (5) years.  Said books and accounts will be available at all reasonable times for examination 
by CLIENT at the corporate office of COMPANY during that time. 

8.6 Insurance 

COMPANY will maintain insurance for claims under the Worker's Compensation Laws, and from General 
Liability and Automobile claims for bodily injury, death, or property damage, and Professional Liability insurance 
caused by the negligent performance by COMPANY's employees of the functions and services required under 
this AGREEMENT. 

  



Professional Services Agreement 
Sidewalk Program 

220501 
03/28/2022 

Page 6 of 10 
 

Version2.3   03282022 

8.7 Termination or Abandonment 

Either party has the option to terminate this AGREEMENT. In the event of failure by the other party to perform 
in accordance with the terms hereof through no fault of the terminating party, then the obligation to provide 
further services under this AGREEMENT may be terminated upon seven (7) days’ written notice.  If any portion 
of the services is terminated or abandoned by CLIENT, the provisions of this Schedule of Fees and Conditions 
in regard to compensation and payment shall apply insofar as possible to that portion of the services not 
terminated or abandoned.  If said termination occurs prior to completion of any phase of the project, the fee for 
services performed during such phase shall be based on COMPANY's reasonable estimate of the portion of 
such phase completed prior to said termination, plus a reasonable amount to reimburse COMPANY for 
termination costs. 

8.8 Waiver 

COMPANY's waiver of any term, condition, or covenant or breach of any term, condition, or covenant, shall not 
constitute a waiver of any other term, condition, or covenant, or the breach thereof. 

8.9 Severability 

If any provision of this AGREEMENT is declared invalid, illegal, or incapable of being enforced by any Court of 
competent jurisdiction, all of the remaining provisions of this AGREEMENT shall nevertheless continue in full 
force and effect, and no provision shall be deemed dependent upon any other provision unless so expressed 
herein. 

8.10 Successors and Assigns 

All of the terms, conditions, and provisions hereof shall inure to the benefit of and are binding upon the parties 
hereto, and their respective successors and assigns, provided, however, that no assignment of this 
AGREEMENT shall be made without written consent of the parties to this AGREEMENT. 

8.11 Third-Party Beneficiaries 

Nothing contained in this AGREEMENT shall create a contractual relationship with or a cause of action in favor 
of a third party against either the CLIENT or the COMPANY.  The COMPANY’s services under this 
AGREEMENT are being performed solely for the CLIENT’s benefit, and no other party or entity shall have any 
claim against the COMPANY because of this AGREEMENT or the performance or nonperformance of services 
hereunder.  The CLIENT and COMPANY agree to require a similar provision in all contracts with contractors, 
subcontractors, sub-consultants, vendors and other entities involved in this project to carry out the intent of this 
provision. 

8.12 Governing Law and Jurisdiction 

The CLIENT and the COMPANY agree that this AGREEMENT and any legal actions concerning its validity, 
interpretation and performance shall be governed by the laws of the State of Iowa without regard to any conflict 
of law provisions, which may apply the laws of other jurisdictions. 

It is further agreed that any legal action between the CLIENT and the COMPANY arising out of this 
AGREEMENT or the performance of the services shall be brought in a court of competent jurisdiction in the 
State of Iowa. 

8.13 Dispute Resolution 

Mediation. In an effort to resolve any conflicts that arise during the design or construction of the project or 
following the completion of the project, the CLIENT and COMPANY agree that all disputes between them arising 
out of or relating to this AGREEMENT shall be submitted to non-binding mediation unless the parties mutually 
agree otherwise. The CLIENT and COMPANY further agree to include a similar mediation provision in all 
agreements with independent contractors and consultants retained for the project and to require all independent 
contractors and consultants also to include a similar mediation provision in all agreements with subcontractors, 
sub-consultants, suppliers or fabricators so retained, thereby providing for mediation as the primary method for 
dispute resolution between the parties to those agreements. 

  



Professional Services Agreement 
Sidewalk Program 

220501 
03/28/2022 

Page 7 of 10 
 

Version2.3   03282022 

8.14 Attorney’s Fees 

If litigation arises for purposes of collecting fees or expenses due under this AGREEMENT, the Court in such 
litigation shall award reasonable costs and expenses, including attorney fees, to the party justly entitled thereto.  
In awarding attorney fees, the Court shall not be bound by any Court fee schedule, but shall, in the interest of 
justice, award the full amount of costs, expenses, and attorney fees paid or incurred in good faith. 

8.15 Ownership of Instruments of Service 

All reports, plans, specifications, field data, field notes, laboratory test data, calculations, estimates and other 
documents including all documents on electronic media prepared by COMPANY as instruments of service shall 
remain the property of COMPANY.  COMPANY shall retain these records for a period of five (5) years following 
completion/submission of the records, during which period they will be made available to the CLIENT at all 
reasonable times. 

8.16 Reuse of Documents 

All project documents including, but not limited to, plans and specifications furnished by COMPANY under this 
project are intended for use on this project only.  Any reuse, without specific written verification or adoption by 
COMPANY, shall be at the CLIENT's sole risk, and CLIENT shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless 
COMPANY from all claims, damages and expenses including attorneys’ fees arising out of or resulting 
therefrom. 

Under no circumstances shall delivery of electronic files for use by the CLIENT be deemed a sale by the 
COMPANY, and the COMPANY makes no warranties, either express or implied, of merchantability and fitness 
for any particular purpose. In no event shall the COMPANY be liable for indirect or consequential damages as 
a result of the CLIENT’s use or reuse of the electronic files. 

8.17 Failure to Abide by Design Documents or To Obtain Guidance 

The CLIENT agrees that it would be unfair to hold COMPANY liable for problems that might occur should 
COMPANY’S plans, specifications or design intents not be followed, or for problems resulting from others' failure 
to obtain and/or follow COMPANY’S guidance with respect to any errors, omissions, inconsistencies, 
ambiguities or conflicts which are detected or alleged to exist in or as a consequence of implementing 
COMPANY’S plans, specifications or other instruments of service.  Accordingly, the CLIENT waives any claim 
against COMPANY, and agrees to defend, indemnify and hold COMPANY harmless from any claim for injury 
or losses that results from failure to follow COMPANY’S plans, specifications or design intent, or for failure to 
obtain and/or follow COMPANY’S guidance with respect to any alleged errors, omissions, inconsistencies, 
ambiguities or conflicts contained within or arising as a result of implementing COMPANY’S plans, specifications 
or other instruments of service.  The CLIENT also agrees to compensate COMPANY for any time spent and 
expenses incurred remedying CLIENT’s failures according to COMPANY’S prevailing fee schedule and 
expense reimbursement policy. 

8.18 Opinion of Probable Construction Cost 

As part of the Deliverables, COMPANY may submit to the CLIENT an opinion of probable cost required to 
construct work recommended, designed, or specified by COMPANY, if required by CLIENT.  COMPANY is not 
a construction cost estimator or construction contractor, nor should COMPANY’S rendering an opinion of 
probable construction costs be considered equivalent to the nature and extent of service a construction cost 
estimator or construction contractor would provide.  This requires COMPANY to make a number of assumptions 
as to actual conditions that will be encountered on site; the specific decisions of other design professionals 
engaged; the means and methods of construction the contractor will employ; the cost and extent of labor, 
equipment and materials the contractor will employ; contractor's techniques in determining prices and market 
conditions at the time, and other factors over which COMPANY has no control.  Given the assumptions which 
must be made, COMPANY cannot guarantee the accuracy of its opinions of cost, and in recognition of that fact, 
the CLIENT waives any claim against COMPANY relative to the accuracy of COMPANY’S opinion of probable 
construction cost. 

8.19 Design Information in Electronic Form 

Because electronic file information can be easily altered, corrupted, or modified by other parties, either 
intentionally or inadvertently, without notice or indication, COMPANY reserves the right to remove itself from its 
ownership and/or involvement in the material from each electronic medium not held in its possession. CLIENT 
shall retain copies of the work performed by COMPANY in electronic form only for information and use by 
CLIENT for the specific purpose for which COMPANY was engaged. Said material shall not be used by CLIENT 



Professional Services Agreement 
Sidewalk Program 

220501 
03/28/2022 

Page 8 of 10 
 

Version2.3   03282022 

or transferred to any other party, for use in other projects, additions to this project, or any other purpose for 
which the material was not strictly intended by COMPANY without COMPANY’s express written permission. 
Any unauthorized use or reuse or modifications of this material shall be at CLIENT’S sole risk.  Furthermore, 
the CLIENT agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold COMPANY harmless from all claims, injuries, damages, 
losses, expenses, and attorneys’ fees arising out of the modification or reuse of these materials. 

The CLIENT recognizes that designs, plans, and data stored on electronic media including, but not limited to 
computer disk, magnetic tape, or files transferred via email, may be subject to undetectable alteration and/or 
uncontrollable deterioration.  The CLIENT, therefore, agrees that COMPANY shall not be liable for the 
completeness or accuracy of any materials provided on electronic media after a 30-day inspection period, during 
which time COMPANY shall correct any errors detected by the CLIENT to complete the design in accordance 
with the intent of the contract and specifications.  After 40 days, at the request of the CLIENT, COMPANY shall 
submit a final set of sealed drawings, and any additional services to be performed by COMPANY relative to the 
submitted electronic materials shall be subject to separate agreement.  The CLIENT is aware that differences 
may exist between the electronic files delivered and the printed hard-copy construction documents.  In the event 
of a conflict between the signed construction documents prepared by the COMPANY and electronic files, the 
signed or sealed hard-copy construction documents shall govern. 

8.20 Information Provided by Others 

The CLIENT shall furnish, at the CLIENT’s expense, all information, requirements, reports, data, surveys and 
instructions required by this AGREEMENT.  The COMPANY may use such information, requirements, reports, 
data, surveys and instructions in performing its services and is entitled to rely upon the accuracy and 
completeness thereof.  The COMPANY shall not be held responsible for any errors or omissions that may arise 
as a result of erroneous or incomplete information provided by the CLIENT and/or the CLIENT’s consultants 
and contractors. 

COMPANY is not responsible for accuracy of any plans, surveys or information of any type including electronic 
media prepared by any other consultants, etc. provided to COMPANY for use in preparation of plans.  The 
CLIENT agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify and hold harmless the COMPANY from any 
damages, liabilities, or costs, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and defense costs, arising out of or connected 
in any way with the services performed by other consultants engaged by the CLIENT. 

COMPANY is not responsible for accuracy of topographic surveys provided by others.  A field check of a 
topographic survey provided by others will not be done under this AGREEMENT unless indicated in the Scope 
of Services. 

8.21 Force Majeure 

The CLIENT agrees that the COMPANY is not responsible for damages arising directly or indirectly from any 
delays for causes beyond the COMPANY's control. CLIENT agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold COMPANY, 
its consultants, agents, and employees harmless from any and all liability, other than that caused by the 
negligent acts, errors, or omissions of COMPANY, arising out of or resulting from the same.  For purposes of 
this AGREEMENT, such causes include, but are not limited to, strikes or other labor disputes; severe weather 
disruptions or other natural disasters or acts of God; fires, riots, war or other emergencies; disease epidemic or 
pandemic; failure of any government agency to act in a timely manner; failure of performance by the CLIENT or 
the CLIENT’S contractors or consultants; or discovery of any hazardous substances or differing site conditions.  
Severe weather disruptions include but are not limited to extensive rain, high winds, snow greater than two (2) 
inches and ice.  In addition, if the delays resulting from any such causes increase the cost or time required by 
the COMPANY to perform its services in an orderly and efficient manner, the COMPANY shall be entitled to a 
reasonable adjustment in schedule and compensation. 

8.22 Job Site Visits and Safety 

Neither the professional activities of COMPANY, nor the presence of COMPANY’S employees and sub-
consultants at a construction site, shall relieve the general contractor and any other entity of their obligations, 
duties and responsibilities including, but not limited to, construction means, methods, sequence, techniques or 
procedures necessary for performing, superintending or coordinating all portions of the work of construction in 
accordance with the contract documents and any health or safety precautions required by any regulatory 
agencies.  COMPANY and its personnel have no authority to exercise any control over any construction 
contractor or other entity or their employees in connection with their work or any health or safety precautions.  
The CLIENT agrees that the general contractor is solely responsible for job site safety, and warrants that this 
intent shall be made evident in the CLIENT's AGREEMENT with the general contractor.  The CLIENT also 



Professional Services Agreement 
Sidewalk Program 

220501 
03/28/2022 

Page 9 of 10 
 

Version2.3   03282022 

agrees that the CLIENT, COMPANY and COMPANY’S consultants shall be indemnified and shall be made 
additional insureds on the general contractor’s and all subcontractor’s general liability policies on a primary and 
non-contributory basis. 

8.23 Hazardous Materials 

CLIENT hereby understands and agrees that COMPANY has not created nor contributed to the creation or 
existence of any or all types of hazardous or toxic wastes, materials, chemical compounds, or substances, or 
any other type of environmental hazard or pollution, whether latent or patent, at CLIENT's premises, or in 
connection with or related to this project with respect to which COMPANY has been retained to provide 
professional services.  The compensation to be paid COMPANY for said professional services is in no way 
commensurate with, and has not been calculated with reference to, the potential risk of injury or loss which may 
be caused by the exposure of persons or property to such substances or conditions.  Therefore, to the fullest 
extent permitted by law, CLIENT agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold COMPANY, its officers, directors, 
employees, and consultants, harmless from and against any and all claims, damages, and expenses, whether 
direct, indirect, or consequential, including, but not limited to, attorney fees and Court costs, arising out of, or 
resulting from the discharge, escape, release, or saturation of smoke, vapors, soot, fumes, acid, alkalis, toxic 
chemicals, liquids gases, or any other materials, irritants, contaminants, or pollutants in or into the atmosphere, 
or on, onto, upon, in, or into the surface or subsurface of soil, water, or watercourses, objects, or any tangible 
or intangible matter, whether sudden or not. 

It is acknowledged by both parties that COMPANY’S Scope of Services does not include any services related 
to asbestos or hazardous or toxic materials.  In the event COMPANY or any other party encounters asbestos 
or hazardous or toxic materials at the job site, or should it become known in any way that such materials may 
be present at the job site or any adjacent areas that may affect the performance of COMPANY’S services, 
COMPANY may, at its option and without liability for consequential or any other damages, suspend performance 
of services on the project until the CLIENT retains appropriate specialist consultant(s) or contractor(s) to identify, 
abate and/or remove the asbestos or hazardous or toxic materials, and warrants that the job site is in full 
compliance with applicable laws and regulations. 

Nothing contained within this AGREEMENT shall be construed or interpreted as requiring COMPANY to assume 
the status of a generator, storer, transporter, treater, or disposal facility as those terms appear within the 
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C.A., §6901 et seq., as amended, or within any State statute 
governing the generation, treatment, storage, and disposal of waste. 

8.24 Certificate of Merit 

The CLIENT shall make no claim for professional negligence, either directly or in a third party claim, against 
COMPANY unless the CLIENT has first provided COMPANY with a written certification executed by an 
independent design professional currently practicing in the same discipline as COMPANY and licensed in the 
State in which the claim arises.  This certification shall:  a) contain the name and license number of the certifier; 
b) specify each and every act or omission that the certifier contends is a violation of the standard of care 
expected of a design professional performing professional services under similar circumstances; and c) state in 
complete detail the basis for the certifier's opinion that each such act or omission constitutes such a violation.  
This certificate shall be provided to COMPANY not less than thirty (30) calendar days prior to the presentation 
of any claim or the institution of any judicial proceeding. 

8.25 Limitation of Liability 

In recognition of the relative risks and benefits of the Project to both the CLIENT and the COMPANY, the risks 
have been allocated such that the CLIENT agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to limit the liability of 
the COMPANY and COMPANY’S officers, directors, partners, employees, shareholders, owners and sub-
consultants for any and all claims, losses, costs, damages of any nature whatsoever or claims expenses from 
any cause or causes, including attorneys’ fees and costs and expert witness fees and costs, so that the total 
aggregate liability of the COMPANY and COMPANY’S officers, directors, partners, employees, shareholders, 
owners and sub-consultants shall not exceed $50,000.00, or the COMPANY’S total fee for services rendered 
on this Project, whichever is greater. It is intended that this limitation apply to any and all liability or cause of 
action however alleged or arising, unless otherwise prohibited by law. 

  



Professional Services Agreement 
Sidewalk Program 

220501 
03/28/2022 

Page 10 of 10 
 

Version2.3   03282022 

8.26 Environmental Audits/Site Assessments 

Environmental Audit/Site Assessment report(s) are prepared for CLIENT's sole use.  CLIENT agrees to defend, 
indemnify, and hold COMPANY, its consultants, agents, and employees harmless against all damages, claims, 
expenses, and losses arising out of or resulting from any reuse of the Environmental Audit/Site Assessment 
report(s) without the written authorization of COMPANY. 

8.27 Design Without Construction Observation   

It is agreed that the professional services of COMPANY do not extend to or include the review or site observation 
of the contractor's work or performance and the CLIENT assumes all responsibility for interpretation of the 
contract documents and for construction observation.  It is further agreed that the CLIENT will defend, indemnify 
and hold harmless COMPANY from any claim or suit whatsoever, including but not limited to all payments, 
expenses or costs involved, arising from the contractor's performance or the failure of the contractor's work to 
conform to the design intent and the contract documents.  COMPANY agrees to be responsible for its 
employees’ negligent acts, errors or omissions. 

 
8.37 Municipal Advisor 

The COMPANY is not a Municipal Advisor registered with the Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) as 
defined in the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act.  When the CLIENT is a municipal 
entity as defined by said Act, and the CLIENT requires project financing information for the services performed 
under this AGREEMENT, the CLIENT will provide the COMPANY with a letter detailing who their independent 
registered municipal advisor is and that the CLIENT will rely on the advice of such advisor.  A sample letter can 
be provided to the CLIENT upon request. 

This AGREEMENT is approved and accepted by the CLIENT and COMPANY upon both parties 
signing and dating the AGREEMENT.  Services will not begin until COMPANY receives a signed 
agreement. COMPANY’s services shall be limited to those expressly set forth in this 
AGREEMENT and COMPANY shall have no other obligations or responsibilities for the Project 
except as agreed to in writing.  The effective date of the AGREEMENT shall be the last date 
entered below. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
HR GREEN, INC. 

    

    

Jeremy Kaemmer, PE, AICP    

Approved by:    

Printed/Typed Name: Andrew Marsh, PE 

Title: Vice President Date:   

     
City of Anamosa    

Accepted by:    

Printed/Typed Name:  

Title:  Date:   
 
 
 

April 1, 2022

























City of Anamosa - Job Description 
          Full-Time 

 
Identification 

Position Title Central Filing Clerk/Deputy Treasurer 

Department Administration 

Immediate Supervisor City Administrator/Clerk 

 
Job Summary 
Under the direct supervision of the City Administrator/Clerk.  Responsible for processing 
and maintaining all payroll, insurance, and personnel records.  Oversee the central filing 
system and perform record keeping duties as directed. Perform duties of zoning 
secretary and assist other sections of the Administrative Department.  Perform daily 
utility billing duties.  Maintain effective communication with the public, employees, and 
vendors (direct/electronic/phone).  Process and work with confidential information and 
record keeping. 
 
Essential Job Duties and Responsibilities 
Payroll: 

• Responsible for the processing of payroll and all associated reporting and 
records for both payroll and employee personnel files. 

• Responsible for the maintenance of the City employee’s group insurances. 
• Create a wage spreadsheet every January in excel for reporting purposes and in 

word for publication in newspaper. 
 
Other Duties: 

• Responsible for the creation, rules, oversight, and maintenance of the central 
filing system and records retention. 

• Perform utility billing duties. 
• Prepare and send curb stop letters as required 
• Maintain Proofs of Publication to be filed and scanned to digital document 

storage. 
• Collaborate with the Deputy City Clerk to complete bank records and monthly 

reconciliation reports. 
• Open/sort/disburse mail for accounts payable. 
• Reconcile petty cash as needed. 
• Perform duties associated with the Secretary for the Planning and Zoning 

Commission and the Zoning Board of Adjustment; including preparation and 
publication of hearing notices, sending notices to adjoining property owners, 
preparing agendas and other notice requirements, taking minutes of meetings 
and maintaining minute books for Zoning entities, ensuring that properties are 
posted in a timely manner, and being familiar with zoning regulations to assist 
those who need development permits or require rezoning or variances. 
 

 



Miscellaneous Duties: 
• Assist City Administrator/Clerk in special projects such as reporting, research, 

budget, and year-end close out. 
• Assist the City Administrator/Clerk with website maintenance and social media 

posts.  
• Assist the City Administrator/Clerk with preparing the council agenda, attend 

meetings and record minutes in absence of the Deputy City Clerk. 
• Provide customer service via telephone, mail or directly, by furnishing requested 

information or, if necessary, by transferring to appropriate staff member or office. 
• Provide internal support to City Administrator/Clerk and various departments 

within the City. 
• Perform general clerical duties to include:  photocopying, scanning, faxing, 

mailing and filing. 
• Perform the duties of the Deputy City Clerk (when absent). 
• Perform other duties as assigned. 

 
Physical and Environmental Conditions 
Ability to transport self from building to building and to attend various functions and 
meetings at other sites either within or outside of the City.  The physical demands and 
work environment conditions described here are representative of those that must be 
met by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job and are 
encountered while performing those essential functions.  Reasonable accommodations 
may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.  
While performing the duties of this job, the employee is regularly required to sit; use 
hands to finger, handle, or feel; and talk and hear.  The employee frequently is required 
to reach with hands and arms.  The employee is occasionally required to walk or stand.  
Specific vision abilities required by this job include close vision.  The noise level in the 
work environment is usually moderate 
 
Required Education, Experience, and Certification 

 
● Must have high school diploma or equivalency. 
● Must have a valid Iowa driver’s license. 
● Post high school education or experience in accounting. 
● At least 5 years of employment experience in a similar position within the public 

or private sector.  
● Knowledge of the principles of bookkeeping, accounting and auditing. 
● Ability to compile and analyze financial reports. 
● Must have knowledge and experience of office procedures and practices. 
● Must be able to work with confidential information. 
● Must have experience and good working knowledge of Microsoft Word and Excel 

or comparable.  Experience with Microsoft Office Professional would be a plus. 
● Knowledge and experience with office procedures and practices (i.e. filing, letter   

writing, time management, etc.) 
● Must have the ability to speak and write effectively, and to establish effective 

working relationships with the public and fellow employees. 
● Must be able to attend evening meetings. 



● Must be well organized and manage time and work schedules. 
● Shall be bondable 
● Shall be or become a Certified Municipal Clerk and Finance officer.  

 
Residency Requirement 
Residency within Jones County is preferred but not required. 
 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
The above statements are intended to describe the general nature and level of work 
being performed by individuals assigned to this job. They are not intended to be an 
exhaustive list of all responsibilities, duties, and skills required of personnel so classified 
in this position. 



City of Anamosa - Job Description 
          Full-Time 

 
Identification 

Position Title Deputy City Clerk 

Department Administration 

Immediate Supervisor City Administrator/Clerk 

 
Job Summary 
Under the direct supervision of the City Administrator/Clerk.  Responsible for processing 
accounts payable, accounts receivable, and maintenance of vendor records. Provide 
direct support for cemetery operations/records and utility billing.  Perform record 
keeping duties and secretarial duties as directed.  Maintain effective communication 
with the public, employees, and vendors (direct/electronic/phone).  Process and work 
with confidential information and record keeping.   
 
Principle Job Duties and Responsibilities 
Accounts Payable: 

• Sort/review/prepare all invoices to be processed-match to statements. 
• Maintenance of vendors and entry of new vendors into system. 
• Enter invoices into accounting software (Council, Library, Consumer Deposit 

Refunds, and Manual Checks). 
• Upon approval, process checks by matching invoice to check, ensuring accuracy, 

stamp invoices paid and file in current FY Accounts Payable Files. 
• Maintain current and previous FY Accounts Payable Files, to include year-end 

disposal and archival procedures. 
• Scan Accounts Payable Journals into electronic file system, maintaining paper 

copy for one year. 
• Mail/process W-9 TIN forms. 
• Prepare bi-monthly Accounts Payable paid claims report for City Council meeting 

packet and newspaper publication. 
• Responsible for daily cash register operations and bank deposits. 

 
Accounts Receivable: 

• Process payments as received. Examples include interest, property tax, LOST, 
RUT, and others.  

• Generate invoices as needed.  
 
License & Permits: Cigarette and Liquor 

• Distribute applications/billings for license & permit renewals. 
• Prepare/distribute licenses & permits and provide information upon request. 
• Process license & permit receipts. 
• Maintain records & files of all businesses subject to license & permit fees. 
• Maintain records of violations, and transmit all documents pertaining to the 

disposition of these violations to the proper State Authorities. 



Other Financial Duties: 
• Collaborate with the Central Filing Clerk/Deputy Treasurer to complete bank 

records and monthly reconciliation reports. 
• Open/sort/disburse mail for accounts payable. 
• Assist City Administrator/Clerk in special projects such as reporting, research, 

budget, and year-end close out. 
• Reconcile petty cash as needed. 

 
Miscellaneous Duties: 

• Assist the Central Filing Clerk/Deputy Treasurer with payroll. 
• Assist the Central Filing Clerk/Deputy Treasurer with permits, as required 
• Assist the Central Filing Clerk/Deputy Treasurer with the central filing system and 

records retention. 
• Assist the Central Filing Clerk/Deputy Treasurer with Utility Billing duties 
• Assist the City Administrator/Clerk with website maintenance and social media 

posts.  
• Assist the City Administrator/Clerk with preparing the council agenda, attend 

meetings and record minutes. 
• Assist the City Administrator/Clerk with cemetery records and burial requests.  
• Assist the City Administrator/Clerk designating standard operating procedures for 

the Administration Department.  
• Provide customer service via telephone, mail or directly, by furnishing requested 

information or, if necessary, by transferring to appropriate staff member or office. 
• Provide internal support to City Administrator/Clerk and various departments 

within the City. 
• Perform general clerical duties to include:  photocopying, scanning, faxing, 

mailing and filing. 
• Perform the duties of the City Clerk (when absent). 
• Perform other duties as assigned. 

 
Physical and Environmental Conditions 
Ability to transport self from building to building and to attend various functions and 
meetings at other sites either within or outside of the City.  The physical demands and 
work environment conditions described here are representative of those that must be 
met by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job and are 
encountered while performing those essential functions. Reasonable accommodations 
may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 
While performing the duties of this job, the employee is regularly required to sit; use 
hands to finger, handle, or feel; and talk and hear. The employee frequently is required 
to reach with hands and arms. The employee is occasionally required to walk or stand.  
Specific vision abilities required by this job include close vision.  The noise level in the 
work environment is usually moderate 
 
Required Education, Experience, and Certification 

● Must have high school diploma or equivalency. 
● Must have a valid Iowa driver’s license. 
● Post high school education or experience in accounting. 



● At least 5 years of employment experience in a similar position within the public 
or private sector.  

● Knowledge of the principles of bookkeeping, accounting and auditing. 
● Ability to compile and analyze financial reports. 
● Must have knowledge and experience of office procedures and practices. 
● Must be able to work with confidential information. 
● Must have experience and good working knowledge of Microsoft Word and Excel 

or comparable.  Experience with Microsoft Office Professional would be a plus. 
● Knowledge and experience with office procedures and practices (i.e. filing, letter   

writing, time management, etc.) 
● Must have the ability to speak and write effectively, and to establish effective 

working relationships with the public and fellow employees. 
● Must be able to attend evening meetings. 
● Must be well organized and manage time and work schedules. 
● Shall be bondable 
● Shall be or become a Certified Municipal Clerk and Finance officer.  

 
Residency Requirement 
Residency within Jones County is preferred but not required. 
 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
The above statements are intended to describe the general nature and level of work 
being performed by individuals assigned to this job. They are not intended to be an 
exhaustive list of all responsibilities, duties, and skills required of personnel so classified 
in this position. 



Page 1 of 1 

RESOLUTION NO.  2022-26 
 
RESOLUTION APPROVING THE HIRING AND SETTING SALARIES OF SEASONAL PART 
TIME EMPLOYEES FOR THE PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT FOR THE 2022 

SUMMER SEASON 
 
 WHEREAS, with the upcoming summer season there is a need to hire part time seasonal 
personnel to maintain the parks and to staff the Anamosa Aqua Court; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the personnel list and personnel to hire have been reviewed by the Director and 
recommended to the Parks and Recreation Board where it was approved; and 
 
 WHEREAS, such recommendation is now forwarded onto the City Council for their review 
and consideration. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF ANAMOSA, 
IOWA, that the following personnel for the upcoming season be approved: 
  

AQUACOURT – POOL MANAGERS 
Employee Name Hourly Rate 

Zoey Peterschmidt $11.75 
Drew Pate $11.25 

Austin Wickham $11.25 
Cole Haverly $11.25 

 
 
 
 
 
 

COUNCILMEMBER   AYES NAYS ABSENT 
         
CRUMP      
SMITH      
MACHART      
ZUMBACH      
STOUT      
CAPRON      
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 25th day of April, 2022. 
                  

                                                                                              ________________________ 
        ROD SMITH, MAYOR  

 
 

ATTEST:  
    _______________________ 
JEREMIAH HOYT, INTERIM CITY ADMINISTRATOR/CLERK 






















	1 - 4.25.22 Council Agenda
	4.1 - 04.11.22 Minutes
	7.1 - Original Agreement - Fire Station Addition
	7.1 - Shive-Hattery Amendment#02
	7.2 - City Admin-Clerk Job Announcment
	7.2 - City Admin-Clerk Profile
	7.3 - Snyder & Associates Update
	7.4 - HR Green Update1
	7.4 - HR Green Update2
	7.4 - HR Green Update3
	7.5 - Downtown Revitalization Update and Change Order
	8.2 - Senior Dining Fire System
	8.3 - Anamosa FD Volunteer App
	8.4 - Hinrichsen Service Agreement
	8.5 - Central Filing Clerk-Deputy Treasurer Job Description
	8.5 - Deputy City Clerk Job Description
	8.6 - Resolution Seasonal Aquacourt Employees
	8.7 - Expense Approval Report 04.25.22



